
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
May 18, 2015 

6:30 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session:  Union Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
(a) Approval of the minutes of May 4, 2015 
(b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 025 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
(a) Financial Update 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
53. The Town Council will hear comments regarding ordinance amendments to Chapter 14 

“Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places” of the Brunswick Municipal Code relative 
to increasing permit fees for Street Openings, Street Entrances, and Street Obstruction, 
and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
54. The Town Council will hear comments regarding ordinance amendments to Chapter 13 

“Solid Waste” of the Brunswick Municipal Code to allow a discounted disposal fee in 
return for a reduction in the contract charge for curbside residential rubbish collection for 
Town contracted residential curbside collection, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 



2 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
55. The Town Council will consider recommendations from the Nathaniel Davis Fund 

Committee, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
56. The Town Council will discuss the Municipal Budget and provide some direction as to 

the final budget goal, and no action will be required.  (Manager) 
DISCUSSION 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 

 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda 

May 18, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session:  Union Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to go into executive session to discuss Union Negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
(a) Approval of the minutes of May 4, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your packet. 
(b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 025:  This item is to deed back property to the owner, who has paid owed taxes.  
A copy of the deed is included in your packet. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted 
online, but are not included in your packet. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
53. This item is the required public hearing on ordinance amendments relative to increasing 

fees for permits for Street Openings, Street Entrances, and Street Obstruction.  These fees 
have not been adjusted for many years.  The Public Works Department surveyed other 
communities in 2014, and staff believes it is time to adjust the fees.  Per your Council 
rules, once the public hearing is closed, the Council will determine if any action is 
necessary as allowed under the Council rules and the Town Charter, but the Council is 
encouraged to postpone action until a future meeting to allow for the consideration of the 
public comments.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, the proposed language, a 
memo from John Foster, and the survey of other communities are included in your 
packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to adopt ordinance amendments to Chapter 14 “Streets, Sidewalks, and Other 
Public Places” of the Brunswick Municipal Code relative to increasing permit fees for 
Street Openings, Street Entrances, and Street Obstruction. 

 
54. This item is the required public hearing on ordinance amendments to Chapter 13 “Solid 

Waste” of the Brunswick Municipal Code regarding disposal fees to assist in reducing the 
residential curbside collection cost.  Solid waste disposal fees at the Graham Road 
Landfill are governed by this ordinance, and the proposed amendment would allow the 



4 
 

Town to contractually reduce the solid waste fees as part of its contract to provide 
residential curbside rubbish collection as funded by the budget. The purpose of the 
amendment is to allow a discounted disposal fee in return for a reduction in the contract 
charge for curbside residential rubbish collection. Per your Council rules, once the public 
hearing is closed, the Council will determine if any action is necessary as allowed under 
the Council rules and the Town Charter, but the Council is encouraged to postpone action 
until a future meeting to allow for the consideration of the public comments.  Copies of a 
memo from Manager Eldridge and the proposed language are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to adopt ordinance amendments to Chapter 13 “Solid Waste” of the Brunswick 
Municipal Code to allow a discounted disposal fee in return for a reduction in the contract 
charge for curbside residential rubbish collection for Town contracted residential 
curbside collection. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
55. These are the annual recommendations from the Davis Fund Committee for grant 

allocations for 2014-2015.  Committee members will make a presentation on their 
recommendations.  The Council’s action is to approve these recommendations.  A copy 
of the Committee’s minutes, with their recommendations, is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to accept the recommendations for the Davis Fund’s 2014-2015 allocations as 
recommended by the Committee. 

 
56. This item is for the Town Council to discuss the Municipal Budget and to provide some 

direction to the Town Manager for the final budget.  This will allow time for any 
additional adjustments to be made by the Town Manager or School Department prior to 
final adoption.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion required as this is a discussion item. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
May 4, 2015 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Linda Smith, 
Business Development Manager, and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
(a) Approval of the minutes of April 16, 2015 
(b) Approval of the minutes of April 27, 2015 
(c) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka as 

Deputy Wardens for the June 9, 2015 Election   
(d) Proclamation recognizing Town Commons Day  
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:07 p.m.)  
 
Pem Schaefer, Crestview Lane, spoke regarding the NNEPRA. 
 
(A copy of his statement will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Frank Strickland, Assistant Scoutmaster for Troup 648, spoke on behalf of several members of 
his troop in the audience, who were working on their Citizenship in the Community Merit badge. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:16 p.m.)   
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault questioned why the Pine Street extension had to be paved, to which Manager 
Eldridge responded it was relative to ADA accessibility. 
 
Chair Brayman said she would be holding office hours Saturday from 10:00 am. to 12:00 noon at 
Wild Oats. 
 
Councilor K. Wilson congratulated the Brunswick High School softball team, which ended its 
lengthy losing streak with a recent win. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:18 p.m.)   
 
Reports were given regarding the Finance Committee and Teen Center fund raiser. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Report from the Memorial Day Committee  (This item was discussed at 7:19 p.m.)   
 
Tasha Connors, Chair of the Brunswick-Topsham Memorial Day Committee, spoke regarding 
this item. 
 
(b) Report from the Brunswick Development Corporation  (This item was discussed at 7:24 

p.m.)   
 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of Ms. Smith’s memo with supporting materials will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
48.  The Town Council will consider the issue of trains idling in Brunswick, and take any 

appropriate action. (Councilor Perreault and Councilor Millett)  (This item was 
discussed at 7:27 p.m.)   

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Millett also provided information on this item.  She spoke about citizen concerns. 
 
Patricia Quinn, spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault  
Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Harris.  
 
Public Input Section 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

MAIN MOTION 1: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, that the Town of Brunswick 
encourage NNEPRA to investigate, purchase, and install a wayside power station, to 
include power, battery charging, air compressor, and other components required to allow 
for a shut-down of the locomotives when the air temperature exceeds 45 degrees.   
 
Those for, against, and neither for nor against, were each allowed a total of fifteen minutes to 
speak, followed by a time provided for rebuttals.  
 
In support of motion 
Sandra Buckles, 14 Bouchard Drive 
Charles Wallace, 501 Mere Point Road (who also provided a rebuttal after both sides had 
spoken) 
Dan Sullivan, 24 Bouchard Drive 
 
(A copy of the above statements or presentations will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
In opposition to motion 
Margo Knight, 22 Page Street 
Claudia Knox, 36 Cumberland Street 
Bruce Sleeper, representing TrainRiders Northeast 
Fred Wigand, 12 Larrabee Farm Road  
Jeff Reynolds, 36 Redwood Lane 
 
(A copy of Mr. Sleeper’s information will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Spoke neither for nor against 
Jim Oikle, Princes Point Road 
Beverly Schwab, 16 Bouchard Drive 
 
Senator Gerzofsky spoke about his LD regarding a prohibition on train idling. 
 
Council questions 
 
Councilor Walker and Councilor Watson asked questions, to which Ms. Quinn responded. 
 
Council Discussion 
 
The following Councilors spoke regarding this item and motion:  Councilor Perreault, Councilor 
Walker, Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Harris, Councilor K. Wilson, 
Councilor S. Wilson, and Chair Brayman.   
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

AMENDMENT TO MAIN MOTION 1 
Councilor Harris moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to amend the motion to say the 
Town of Brunswick wants NNEPRA to employ the best available technology to minimize 
idling of its trains in Brunswick.  
 
Councilor Richardson, Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Walker, Councilor S. 
Wilson, and Chair Brayman spoke on this amendment. 
 
AMENDMENT TO MAIN MOTION 1 
Councilor Harris moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to amend the motion to say the 
Town of Brunswick wants NNEPRA to employ the best available technology to minimize 
idling of its trains in Brunswick.  The motion failed with four (4) yeas. Councilor Watson, 
Councilor S. Wilson, Chair Brayman, Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Richardson 
were opposed.  
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION 1: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, that the Town of Brunswick 
encourage NNEPRA to investigate, purchase, and install a wayside power station, to 
include power, battery charging, air compressor, and other components required to allow 
for a shut-down of the locomotives when the air temperature exceeds 45 degrees.  The 
motion failed with four (4) yeas. Councilor Watson, Councilor S. Wilson, Chair Brayman, 
Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Richardson were opposed.  
 
TABLING MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett second, to table the second motion that was 
proposed in the Council notes.   
 
After discussion, the tabling motion was withdrawn and there was no further action on this 
item. 
 
(A copy of the sponsoring Councilors’ memo, along with supporting photos and materials, 
NNEPRA provided information on both a yard power cost estimate dated July 2014, and a 
previously drafted Brunswick Train Idling Committee report, as well as Manager Eldridge’s 
letter to NNEPRA dated June 23, 2014, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
A short recess was called and the meeting resumed 9:46 p.m. 
 
49. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for May 18, 2015, on 

ordinance amendments to Chapter 13 “Solid Waste” of the Brunswick Municipal 
Code regarding disposal fees for Town contracted residential curbside collection, 
and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 9:46: 
p.m.)   

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault and 
Councilor S. Wilson. 



Town Council Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to set a public hearing for May 
18, 2015, on ordinance amendments to Chapter 13 “Solid Waste” of the Brunswick 
Municipal Code regarding disposal fees for Town contracted residential curbside 
collection.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
50. The Town Council will consider giving the Town permission to apply for a Coastal 

Communities grant from the Maine Coastal Program (a program of the Department 
of Agriculture, Conservation, and Forestry), and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Walker) (This item was discussed at 9:54 p.m.)   

 
Councilor Walker introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item and asked a question, to which Councilor 
Walker responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to give the Town permission to 
apply for a Coastal Communities grant from the Maine Coastal Program (a program of the 
Department of Agriculture, Conservation, and Forestry.)  The motion carried with nine (9)  
yeas. 
 
51. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) (This 
item was discussed at 10:05 p.m.)   

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations: 
 
Conservation Commission 
Amanda Bunker for reappointment for a term to expire on 05/01/2018 
Kurt Stinson for reappointment for a term to expire on 05/01/2018 
Frederic Stott for appointment for the balance of a term to expire on 05/01/2017 
 
Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Implementation Committee 
Paul Dostie for reappointment as a resident downtown for a term to expire 12/01/2017 
 
Marine Resource 
Mark Latti for reappointment as a recreational license holder member for a term to expire on 
05/01/2018 
Darcie Couture for appointment as a non-license holder member for a term to expire on 
05/01/2018 
 
Recycling and Sustainability Committee 
Caron Grich for reappointment for a term to expire on 01/12/2018 



Town Council Minutes 
May 4, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
The Council supported the nominations with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:06 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith  
Town Clerk 
May 8, 2015 
 

May 18, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,467,943.49         249.00                   -278,849.49  100.8%*
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -19,634.41            .00                    -55,365.59   26.2% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      49,440.72       5,245.56                     25,559.28   65.9%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      14,610.69          18.00                     -2,610.69  121.8%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000     103,900.30            .00                     46,099.70   69.3%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,635.00            .00                   -255,740.00  262.0%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   2,438,721.15     299,375.04                    386,278.85   86.3%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000      14,084.55       8,410.80                     10,915.45   56.3%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000       4,059.94            .00                        -59.94  101.5%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  39,826,754.28     313,298.40                   -221,175.28  100.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  39,826,754.28     313,298.40                   -221,175.28

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000      11,600.00       1,250.00                     -3,600.00  145.0%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       1,980.00         300.00                         20.00   99.0%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     133,007.00      14,257.13                       -507.00  100.4%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      27,409.73       1,300.50                      3,590.27   88.4%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      16,887.50       1,677.50                      3,612.50   82.4%*
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300         815.75         130.50                        484.25   62.8%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       2,623.00          95.00                       -121.00  104.8%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      44,703.60       4,146.40                        296.40   99.3%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250      15,545.00       1,075.00                      8,705.00   64.1%*
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675         850.00         200.00                     19,825.00    4.1%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175      17,900.00      16,450.00                     -2,725.00  118.0%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       4,740.00         156.00                       -230.00  105.1%*
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         445.45          58.98                       -445.45  100.0%*
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      22,472.39       2,077.30                     -7,472.39  149.8%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         260.00          80.00                        240.00   52.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         805.00         100.00                       -205.00  134.2%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         275.00         100.00                       -275.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0       1,024.00         976.00                     -1,024.00  100.0%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OQklPu43LeH0vlbXfmifSwK1IDyyH8/3J2Bn1YPhDBJv7E0lhX2YTN2KM%2BNvMp8%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0oXudhse%2BzL1uPthVGP97OGgEAmgZvXGXE1O%2B9yO/z/03EOVUCVNPR1t564Ayf/m&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ggFx77Bl4X%2Bp/Cahpak15ooJDqNnTZzAZ38OGuiNyG4t1rCpMC2rxriDqgPx1VjM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1E52coL%2BmvzxMjG6Xl0lZYu8d1RZ0VUjuTOqJYKkJ/hO6yp8sEuKPoJ6qyAJ9L6X&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9M5mMniGumg89aejGJC3zwN8xdSGIMsaBahF1XgRJv5n0ayuJU0jEncmd0NMy/Ff&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=20D0nlBzCyEXC%2BSkyoZpa0lnyhurnltyXMboyss8GE9PMfsySOx4gOk2Oju2Wavx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Lhl1mJetwiVDJAGNiBge7ceWml66MesWyxO6YS9RbdBluB8iX61IKYUuaRO8txbo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eqWkZI0khhWjS2%2BlyTUkYTo%2B8MCYHZ1eONTkItuWZgjtrptIhFG0zRqymLfsVEhw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=trOAmeTB/4dtic4N0T23eUMUYvSpOy7i/xM7hWPtCgg%2Bua5Lo0PZqWh2JqEDTHZR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qZWU9AZ6096bCdTwLdpWdyqgJ2Ka6Yt%2Bl8VgraKEC8RXmFG7Bkppermtgyr1M2Uy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ISekE5HlLwf3Gxxr/iHxC6NNVPKT5yPRaKF8SL10Op5WlCKZFTCaQCVFyj5EX04P&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ItuJTfSrwuHZT31sKMyFStWK5nRBfDsAWk/4cAL%2BIx5ajoAdsD74HfsmGEBoBAwC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xa1yn3bBhmG3/NcdW5ZJDU0z7hn0XlvikD%2Bt1voMrcVbz81Haw%2BBYaa8XtFFhDBq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7e69o4EG%2B1DD%2Bka22fKQrJ7X6mTz0xIM6PMqs4V2h2iuvLu5ckywerg6PRguZ9lg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gAt53cXc1AR2Vry1yWBtJD3HQpe7zfAO1F8FQy77tfbjgznXGgAt2q7V5/N4Fkrb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LRyKcMOP3j8/HQk0cq1%2BQ/FAbJHPqkPI2sdHnRf/u23gnYKadvYxnjMmDoDxE1Hw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Yrq9zHmfnrZKzLwQak/xjctKTTe%2BGZdwGlmSeFuqivSxrUoSt0gXckrV3j/pG3ra&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=USTSzk19OS%2BtwBMAxWRB7p5uzKDPXGsYg9n5BdQPjCZ%2BMluKJu1CEvxOX9bWiK9C&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9OEvuGgNLGewTBw9Yts2gVN2r4f/8VhtxnCX4RKRUEoXBowKiWTgVDPdtFMMVmyi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qGxZ4A9e97RZom6NuOyAPb2PRYlbJch1uDO0C1MDISrmRyL6G5SDV46sku9mOTgv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5/y5oJpDBvyN2B5P2olVF7klScGVxNbJ69vvEHXfialp2cKgQbT7TT6HMCQQQTL3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZPCN1Q%2BaAZdMvqVdIZL5WxwnicO9gcjrwfERqZs%2B9NK9NCyTzOoe4P8ww7uEsHtR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2es/YQsfnui0cJiNuxCG4cfgdDLgQjCvetn8fZ2xkqTLWR9xMr1fOgwdp2wUunI9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HHl0ueiPHHECgRsfiyZ/8z9lqaXIUpIyt%2BlCNcUmh31GqECIeUEN8medKrfnaut4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cD1GRr/dlRIOl/4mB8e0%2BCQoINxpRWP19drGIWQ15uHs1Bw1Dok3byGy%2BcxM0Bhl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MTfiazQ0jN6jYjYK/MkYSEF4MRnveJcgnGUdvf0BL0%2BMqKTfvKnm7xihTX2lbPej&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=D4FRwvMLcjMLvVmXm2mL74d3eooY/r341DDJJsO9Ii3rf4ak1/%2B9zUJfcV9%2BSsbL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a2lJo/p3xqr6Yf6VbUDcjG8WdYUGhBo08W/6FuSbOtHOPyQEddSRLCu1y%2BvWvFvA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gx6jiE538kYTxDRZgtDeC9d/JulPIBbuxW9OrUHFdgR9Ao9GxLjNnt8QJ6Stkca4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a9ePf0uVWV5VzlY3P9YjJfF955lxAQJVMRdtAa7SPoxtCGF4C3SmKeHGOeOYNxPF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wWL34qYjvB6UGOjiAUgv6lVb6pZp7PpulsuntfhxZaU4p1pCsXwwtuGRXbMu/jmD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kHsemlGUWAwutBkQsBBZkIbcUXM0Oi7D3dfO6j3PeeSUY5PPD1VD5lWD8k6q84Ue&


 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     303,383.40      44,430.31                     20,128.60   93.8%
 

TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     303,383.40      44,430.31                     20,128.60
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000      14,911.25       6,134.41                         88.75   99.4%*
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00            .00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      26,015.52       3,305.29                     -2,015.52  108.4%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671     793,710.72      53,457.86                    183,960.28   81.2%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400       1,628.52            .00                       -228.52  116.3%*
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   8,431,355.26     911,108.31                  1,515,475.74   84.8%*
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19            .00                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902   9,497,889.68     974,005.87                  1,721,012.32   84.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902   9,497,889.68     974,005.87                  1,721,012.32

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      42,008.49       5,457.49                      7,991.51   84.0%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         915.00         201.00                        585.00   61.0%*
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,000.00         100.00                     -1,000.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0       1,092.52         380.98                     -1,092.52  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     727,045.42      38,429.52                    147,954.58   83.1%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       2,415.60         463.76                     -1,415.60  241.6%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       3,500.00         400.00                       -500.00  116.7%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       3,766.50         492.50                       -166.50  104.6%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000      84,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      40,901.00            .00                    -39,901.00 4090.1%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500     119,507.71      10,994.27                     21,992.29   84.5%*
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      15,608.80         818.75                      9,391.20   62.4%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000      89,411.30         253.34                     47,588.70   65.3%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,920.00       1,120.00                     -1,920.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600   1,133,092.34      59,111.61                    189,507.66   85.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600   1,133,092.34      59,111.61                    189,507.66

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250       9,825.00       1,300.00                     -3,575.00  157.2%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4NBfLGit40da1M2m5gK81wKquhlL4wjGWo34v7q3Dk8lLLuhpIaIj/m3vg8RUsF7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5ERXObUFiKDPn/lUiN8vgsuHSBxoYWBVt8qvV4qw6DYogNlvJOUm8/iosL8uHhrx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SpQLdA%2BdbdWshcUxxSWb6AkF8Q8MZiOKLmN%2B4iBYxcjMhpU2MrwWPrr1wjml7KkS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/ynZWfO4ipCZykM1unJD%2BfMXKc0J0Q1KdS6F9qlZHbCjPEBsgsTgdQpnYUGzE91t&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3eLBU25cV8wJyrg0FW7M1jQ9RAVuiSwr%2BjjzahbR5Ors26lHT15FUuMleKumrE2a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rmvEhU0OMa0yPLeN3q6FHo6oUjMh1TvZVk%2B6FWnXMhlIh5qqaDxm7Dv9tSvcVqPV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WLRrH1js3cWgqiypp2R04RWf%2BCRJEB%2BwZQo4vcIHRstdZNNkzXFGHTPsfcv0ND1T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ko4L1JHS7q9bK5uPjq/4xJ0rQ0%2Bf7IRqq%2BeNBHrV3afk7Pl34hlTS16cK%2BNr/8CQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rqCn7Jd73tUOyGYf/vcQIxejBHk6XSM8nHpfSSu6j/kSnnXs3S8hJHBtvo34UFcT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jLEW9hLWCnSLNtNzRKuRt5NBVKlGw7Q/53p%2BC2AgC3EdZtqz/HEVACA57uww19Qd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ecdm3Hv8ZV8oP7lDA259dIuOgZIz1bu4T/fZ5eVpLpT8MFHrv0XD3djfkHgIAhdH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=S3nrkW0B%2B/8vJF/e18JguuDhzHmwpreWT%2BYvhVOxblfnDo7S3bjTeTrZyu89W0rP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sVZfWC2e45PG//FSE%2BH8laSjwaZTxuPyxs2FKfLa9YG9HPx6bfL7%2BiZEU7Jm694k&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SBuWup4J2g2Xwufhni5Dm5sXzBuZSJrq/wujPnsGSygQRsyUkEzSVWlrlfNdIFp3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=StivL%2ByoIFIDks1pw7wj5TtzNNeX5Ja0smX9a6d/zy0H3QeQA49vVFnm3Mig8FG9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4CT/iNALNo3aOnegcGs6CbOrJUHBxTmeZ1RQNi9yhzXV7szjsKdfKfUp35mTR/DX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HJXasIjenPV5wf8%2BgP/3gEZ96/fxf5NgjQzQA1IxoVUb6vd5vRMCJcIRLfSbox7T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fLolwCI39MTWYQ8OKBxwgq6FCfdpkudI32N8AlunigQyQ0IJvKbrZwDuIZLO/Nfn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0myezhyEuxMikIogaHwxwxDGreb8nJJ40kmN0Dx0lqHdpCcRvtg29Zo2l9fwk2xq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KwVnxetLvN9IFM5dauuIghEtYC9jU6kdZhOg%2BjdcDogSnaJcVYz2RJD5oEOAhYD6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Acc1DHTto/X2oI5mJM/RaF8LniJhbIyMpaByPOvbhk71rlm3mPoMxjp35%2Bi4dfRk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KtkiHgY8GgGyyttgttEt07a0lDvRvLheTqsTR2R8yk1OiVMn2HcUpGqnaLQgqiAT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=efJwv7r432c6ANvPR4c6P7Ic0xDYHBrjMGkam2Mc3ZUhHc3UTMm8ADaQ4f/oUEZh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WydZKttDrV9at19pHNfCTi2LfS3/x6lSrySVbO2iRQljyE1PMDTeVucsdXRbHTo1&


 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         100.00            .00                       -100.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600       1,629.00            .00                     -1,029.00  271.5%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      34,000.00       2,295.00                    -14,000.00  170.0%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600          50.00            .00                        550.00    8.3%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          10.00            .00                        290.00    3.3%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,352.95          33.68                     -1,352.95  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      47,291.95       3,628.68                    -18,541.95  164.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      47,291.95       3,628.68                    -18,541.95

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000       6,796.17            .00                     33,203.83   17.0%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000       6,796.17            .00                     33,203.83   17.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000       6,796.17            .00                     33,203.83

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000      94,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00   86.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,200,000            .00            .00                  1,200,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       3,126.25         463.84                     -2,126.25  312.6%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2xPYho0IU1X2m28DYGqZKrEQhDoGBdlGR18Qu3qiUaN0S32C4eTZ/H4Y8y5QPmFN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lcP8UajhPtWSjIhT1dkjJRsJpeRi5BSiWFw/25MeK1MFqgH%2BDrqSxMpgF2s7ardn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HQn7cULGj46UdKuRvuJXajOPjcaSogFMJMnWRojeHE6IKqbVNzIvXXxsLGgkUv9c&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JGmX2%2BPcqisTuR%2BibsxSvHYv4dcLZO0gF6DJLoD57SavGmGYut2RPW7zQUd%2ByDhd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=J9aWuqIHLTiO16%2B7hyVFvkhbM4O32/kbehxDgZQ8o/DTGIXBXBsIYr9ATBv3gEMw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZEdEgMnCxNR42Ch85VOt%2BP70k/hznRIg0O%2BuE4xYpbxzNhqaJ2GwRSHt3Zz4dEh0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ABKH5w9BWaZawYatcz14FVnIi2jjWr4TwYT7karItRbrGfYSeA9syh5wfphN3n25&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zVzhH0AH%2B5ad%2BOPF815i8PhfvrxOUBGvAPgitb3IjhZ0S1389HB1RAlm533vN4Wd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9iz%2BDvvB52H/HA//pDzUDFxu4F1UqFIVIb0v42Xh5wyWkOTEUmx/LtHVMZw8gEIS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pRLH1BFKod1ptT4Qf2BpjvlqyCn/txWOHHf0GWUorKsJ99c8gSu4dFC9Kq5hGx7m&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Mawy8kA8PnPzyY4He%2ByqqkPKhqqp4ySEVqFb2%2BWBb0zliZUwrrKwxYduHSChPeuA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=r/6/4v9FzZ4NAKTVQ2f3K6RYWDToQrA4Qt8z/AqmkBQ6lf2/IrdPEXxgZI3cXJiE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0M%2BbCe9wdbHe32otwsx09h2swrUymwb3sF7KMHUpUC6a6odqMcR2Vxjhj0CTWlrh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qgBiN3EWQllEUMfL/doNilIIjr4QWRMu26XiNYkfeBlIaWGwQfOzfnLGnU5uHQir&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4P1QXa5BOouDaTHfZJEqjaBm1a0WiwjXPOCal/59ksXZEjG6hLEB%2BHd86btCMQX1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bT%2B3dXAW14/MdXCm6Sy2lqoqgbfkEHQe9nOuiIfzY/7UZCXlYnpWxxiahd6Ur8Pk&


 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       2,301.02         274.00                     -2,301.02  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       9,690.82       4,120.74                     -9,690.82  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0         375.07            .00                       -375.07  100.0%*
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000     122,988.13            .00                    102,011.87   54.7%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250       1,191.25         125.00                         58.75   95.3%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         431.50          29.25                       -281.50  287.7%*
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800       1,224.52            .00                       -424.52  153.1%*
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       3,051.03            .00                     -3,051.03  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0       1,794.87            .00                     -1,794.87  100.0%*
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000     106,322.76      28,414.25                     11,677.24   90.1%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,000.33            .00                     -1,000.33  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000     511,224.73            .00                    198,775.27   72.0%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200     791,622.82      33,427.08                    272,577.18   74.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200     791,622.82      33,427.08                    272,577.18

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,299,543  51,700,830.64   1,427,901.95                  6,598,712.36   88.7%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TWnguz2va4gvmTBFwXWocgTLaf5ZuDlriIbsc6qXzMZBdx6rscvQjThd9HLyPFdb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JPnMgjRprdQneR4Io/SjYOJqxqpl2h0WVe4NF02breffLdAmja9rKS64Ucyv%2B26a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fpH37ZorqAkRetRNvz0/Hlwmq4uGOudViIhZD%2BR4Xbz1hfONpgUlOa/1lEAT7UnU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0AIt124vNKbEZdRdlZ3UEF66MeFG5JOVRRBPqqFOzlZc/ynzH8hLYOZCsObqUv14&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LiSlJQlPSxMaHJiiS4mK2vIGGmyn3NynydYKqf79AEJiXwXN4Cm5%2BxvtWD981YYa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2qSlZ%2BmOKzC8keMpssbyY/hCCKhTRRKdxhlff388FntztIiXpjYqjn1GBwEzyT2u&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=B7kr8DvvggK%2BWnNM5jZkr90LFs1UhaoJX/HyueWxKAKUXmCWJPOt5zf5muv7e1Eu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QoSX0I8T%2BNHYhfYYdlWeGPdQA4MTHFmQkVfyCyZontOqdIGbM64%2B3hYB%2Bd0cteHp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Z5wMpZ0wm6ZnoaIlY6K9D2OWAmqCm5WEI4OP14RRRBSSQpLyKCierqoxE2rjWP8w&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=c5IlEdY0ic0Jp/ieQ80n5NDGgmdkZH7QSbVY9F5uC/m/oz0QIn3JjMU2pN5E2DE1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NvOLqMIHUAw1hpfVhJ6ZRZuOia2HDOxnxrS0/kjEzW1gPDHWv8X5yB2utx6C7IVh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6BzUOm/dk8r16AkeYCaj0/7iE%2Br5MMG3XXf6WfACZf0ODXaBrrdPNxbbb5cgjbYJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UdkR3mVn5qAJ4mHNW9wQ8jaL9xDBtAxYFQWZ7cZvFn84CcZ7zUYHSq9XBWoqiJvl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HwF8PVNlW0gQcvmOoy%2B23O4F7jPwCFhlXw%2BLpBS1IBiEoudqNGrd56qNnLWLVMMm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LxkdsnVi%2BXQenoZIyP0OjNlt/5Gj7NSa9dzw8Z3tvlMp5ppTlWav1UCs9sBDRGwn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rnkADfW8033Upva8VxBZA/LjwUD1H5rUjC8%2BdqVq87zSYMwSVMyl0r/UsBexA2q8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yreo0FqxVPPiAn10Wd49xWoAMHjcO8NApnF46L%2BNQjC5LHFDZv44l%2Bq1SIpyRWdo&


 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     489,397     442,725.57      43,247.49          80.00      46,591.43   90.5%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     715,425     523,679.44      50,475.77         150.00     191,595.56   73.2%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     274,843.20      36,441.78      17,273.15      35,731.65   89.1%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      60,620.53       1,010.96       3,571.00      21,423.47   75.0%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720     155,748.30      21,672.39       1,916.05      53,055.65   74.8%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0            .00         -70.00            .00            .00     .0%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     473,750     451,428.92      90,911.05            .00      22,321.08   95.3%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -172,283.25     -12,855.20            .00     172,283.25  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      47,790      38,875.34       3,531.97         436.00       8,478.66   82.3%
11300 Assessing      293,660     293,660     211,932.24      20,143.48       1,834.00      79,893.76   72.8%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     365,477     275,105.70      24,221.53       2,625.00      87,746.30   76.0%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     510,504     384,727.39      34,320.19       6,746.78     119,029.84   76.7%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087      78,239.19       7,855.76            .00      30,847.81   71.7%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,629,273   2,725,642.57     320,907.17      34,631.98     868,998.46   76.1%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,113,742   2,439,242.49     217,915.12      16,550.07     657,949.44   78.9%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      28,879.72         899.15       2,400.00      14,459.52   68.4%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      41,825      37,532.75       4,285.24       2,774.81       1,517.44   96.4%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,762,478   2,915,367.97     296,188.79      10,420.04     836,689.99   77.8%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      34,523.17            .00            .00     -34,523.17  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     777,412     591,751.46      56,771.70            .00     185,660.54   76.1%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      79,706.64      10,588.67       1,000.40      17,312.96   82.3%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000     169,174.12      17,440.76            .00      38,825.88   81.3%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600      15,797.50         842.80       6,000.00       9,802.50   69.0%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     438,790     336,447.80     110,748.95            .00     102,342.20   76.7%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000       1,662.65            .00            .00         337.35   83.1%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,519,606   6,650,086.27     715,681.18      39,145.32   1,830,374.65   78.5%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     333,340.84      32,256.27            .00      95,770.16   77.7%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   1,906,214   1,663,141.09     102,895.40      47,623.46     195,449.45   89.7%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     581,847     464,952.47      54,296.03      89,211.64      27,682.89   95.2%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     225,354.70      24,842.93      71,504.74         869.56   99.7%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     751,500     737,158.28      77,535.46      50,666.79     -36,325.07  104.8%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   3,966,401   3,423,947.38     291,826.09     259,006.63     283,446.99   92.9%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     163,607     137,138.69      12,418.77       4,255.01      22,213.30   86.4%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766       2,343.09         697.11            .00         422.91   84.7%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     166,373     139,481.78      13,115.88       4,255.01      22,636.21   86.4%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  24,513,192.31   2,270,489.31            .00  11,250,394.69   68.5%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  24,513,192.31   2,270,489.31            .00  11,250,394.69   68.5%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     365,023.11      37,910.61           4.99     101,196.90   78.3%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     678,434     498,585.32      45,402.54       3,153.29     176,695.39   74.0%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     160,327     110,920.31       7,425.88      12,912.00      36,494.69   77.2%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     115,000     110,673.55         673.55            .00       4,326.45   96.2%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,285,000   1,062,058.54     105,833.33            .00     222,941.46   82.7%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,719,986   2,162,260.83     197,245.91      16,070.28     541,654.89   80.1%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

05/05/2015 12:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |APRIL 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 10
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     164,917     153,583.95          15.00            .00      11,333.05   93.1%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,500.00         250.00            .00       1,500.00   50.0%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000       9,000      30,000.00            .00            .00     -21,000.00  333.3%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917     201,444     195,083.95         265.00      14,526.97      -8,166.95  104.1%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     252,000.00      24,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     264,890.00     -57,730.00            .00            .00  100.0%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     405,625.02      63,937.51            .00           -.02  100.0%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0         232.54     237,471.68            .00        -232.54  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515     922,747.56     267,679.19            .00        -232.56  100.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,370,395  43,213,652.65   4,077,209.73     367,636.19  14,789,106.38   74.7%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 53 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	

	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	22,	2015	
	
RE:	 Permits	and	Fees	for	Street	Openings,	Street	Entrances,		
	 and	Street	Obstruction	
	 	
	
Attached	is	a	draft	of	amendments	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick’s	Code	of	Ordinances.		These	
amendments	would	address	three	areas:	street	openings,	street	entrances,	and	street	obstruction.			
	
Street	Openings	
	
Street	openings	and	excavations	have	been	regulated	by	ordinance	for	many	years.		However,	the	
street	opening	permit	fee	has	been	$8	for	as	long	as	anyone	can	remember.		Generally,	these	
permits	require	Public	Works	to	inspect	the	work.		The	fees	should	be	adjusted	to	recover	more	of	
the	inspection	costs.		The	amendment	also	proposes	to	substantially	increase	the	fee	for	excavation	
during	the	winter	months.		The	proposed	fee	for	winter	excavation	is	to	recognize	the	extra	
attention	required	in	reviewing	work	conducted	during	those	months.	
	
Street	Entrances	
	
Brunswick’s	Code	of	Ordinances	has	been	silent	about	the	specifications	and	permit	fees	for	
driveways	and	other	entrances	to	the	public	way.		Public	Works	has	been	informally	regulating	
those	entrances	and	believes	a	better	practice	would	be	to	codify	the	site	distance,	geometric	and	
other	design	criteria.		Again,	because	an	inspection	is	generally	required,	we	believe	that	a	permit	
fee	is	an	appropriate	way	to	recover	a	portion	of	the	cost.		Currently,	Brunswick	does	not	charge	for	
entrance	permits.	
	
Street	Obstruction	
	
Work	on	buildings	and	other	property	will	often	require	vehicles,	materials,	and	staging	to	occupy	
the	public	right	of	way.		In	those	instances,	jobsites	can	impede	vehicular	and	pedestrian	traffic.		
Those	sites	often	also	require	additional	attention	from	Public	Works	crews	and	public	safety	
personnel.		The	proposed	fee	attempts	to	recover	some	of	the	costs	associated	with	those	activities.		
We	believe	it	will	also	provide	an	incentive	to	minimize	the	obstruction	of	the	Town’s	streets	and	
sidewalks.	
	
In	addition	to	the	proposed	ordinance	amendments,	a	memo	from	the	Town	Engineer	as	well	as	a	
survey	of	fees	that	was	compiled	in	the	summer	of	2014	are	attached.		However,	in	developing	the	
proposed	amendments,	the	Town	Engineer	reviewed	a	number	of	other	municipal	ordinances	and	
fees.		The	proposed	amendments	reflect	that	work	as	well.	
	



J.	Eldridge	Memo	 	 	 April	22,	2015	
Street	Permits	

Memo	Street	Permits	042215.docx	 2	

While	we	recommend	moving	these	amendments	to	a	public	hearing,	the	Council	may	want	to	
consider	sending	them	to	the	Finance	Committee	for	additional	review.	
	
	
Attachments	



 

 

    Page 1 

ARTICLE IV. ‐ EXCAVATION  

FOOTNOTE(S): 

--- (2) ---  

Cross reference— Buildings and building regulations, Ch. 5; utilities, Ch. 16. (Back) 

State Law reference— Excavations, 23 M.R.S.A. § 3351 et seq. (Back) 

Sec. 14‐71. ‐ Permit required.  

Any person desiring to make an excavation in any public way shall first obtain an excavation permit 
from the public works director. All such excavations are governed by 23 M.R.S.A. § 3351 et seq. and this 
article.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 1)  

Sec. 14‐72. ‐ Time of issue restricted.  

Except in an emergency as determined by the public works director, no street or sidewalk opening 
permit shall be issued permitted between November 1 and March 15 of the following year.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 2)  

Sec. 14‐73. ‐ Fee schedule.  

An application fee of eight dollars ($8.00)  one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be paid for the 
issuance of an excavation permit.  If the excavation work is approved by the public works director to take 
place between November 1 and March 15 of the following year. or the excavation work is approved to 
take place within the five year moratorium period from when the street was most recently resurfaced, the 
application fee is five hundred dollars ($500.00), A separate application is required for each utility 
excavation.  Where the excavation work obstructs the public way a separate Obstruction Permit as 
detailed in this chapter, Section 14-82, is required before the start of any work relating to this excavation 
permit.  In addition to the application fee, an inspection fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) per application is 
required.  Where the excavation permit involves a utility line replacement or installation in excess of 50 
feet then the inspection fee is computed as one dollar ($1.00) per foot for open cut trench work or fifty 
cents ($0.50) per foot for directional drilling, times the estimated utility line length as determined by the 
public works director.  plus tThe following charges which are hereby established as being not in excess of 
the reasonable cost of replacement of the openings in the public way by the public works department 
must be paid by the permittee if the public works director determines the restoration of the excavation is 
to be done by public works crews:  

Excavation Charges per Square Yard   Up to 

25 Sq. Yds. 

Over 

25 Sq. Yds.  

Bituminous concrete 4″or more in depth  $35.00$ 45.00  $31.00$ 35.00 

Bituminous concrete less than 4″ in depth    25.00$ 40.00    21.00$ 30.00 

Bituminous concrete over portland cement concrete    39.00$ 50.00    35.00$ 40.00 

Bituminous treated surface or shoulder    13.00$ 40.00    11.00$ 30.00 



 

 

    Page 2 

Plain gravel surface      4.00$ 10.00      4.00$ 10.00 

Bituminous concrete sidewalk    19.00$ 40.00    17.00$ 30.00 

Portland cement concrete sidewalk    27.00$ 35.00    25.00$ 33.00 

Grass esplanade or median strip    13.00$ 20.00    13.00$ 20.00 

Bituminous concrete curbing  $  8.0015.00 per linear foot 

Granite curbing—Removal or realignment    20.00$ 30.00 per linear foot 

Granite curbing—Installation of new material    35.00$ 45.00 per linear foot 

 (Ord. of 8-5-85, § 3)  

Sec. 14‐74. ‐ Minimum charge.  

There is a minimum charge equivalent to three (3) square yards for any opening, to be assessed at 
the appropriate unit rate above. For curbing, the charge is assessed for what is actually destroyed or 
damaged.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 4)  

Sec. 14‐75. ‐ Measurement of openings.  

Where two (2) or more street openings are made in sequence, and adjacent openings are fifteen 
(15) feet or less from center to center, the responsible party shall be charged for one (1) opening 
measured from the leading edge of the first opening to the trailing edge of the last opening.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 5)  

Sec. 14‐76. ‐ Private contractor.  

The excavator may request the town's permission to contract privately for the repairs to the public 
way. The town manager may require him to post a performance bond. All work must be performed in a 
good, workmanlike manner according to town specifications which reflect proper construction methods 
and materials. It is subject to inspection and approval by the public works director.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 6)  

Sec. 14‐77. ‐ Removal of bituminous concrete.  

When bituminous concrete overlaying portland cement is removed, it must be replaced to grade 
upon completion of the work.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 7)  

Sec. 14‐78. ‐ Excavation of cement surface.  

When an opening is made in a street where the surface is portland cement concrete, the concrete 
must be cut back at least twelve (12) inches beyond the edges of the trench before the new concrete 
patch is replaced. Sufficient reinforcing must be furnished to provide the equivalent of half-inch reinforcing 
steel rods on twelve-inch centers both ways, top and bottom, in the new concrete patch. The concrete in 



 

 

    Page 3 

the new patch must be at least four (4) inches thicker than the existing concrete, and the top surface must 
be finished to conform with the surface of the old concrete. In all cases where there is a hot asphalt 
pavement or premixed bituminous pavement, the edges of the existing pavement must be cut back an 
additional eight (8) inches beyond the edges of the patch before the new, permanent surface is replaced.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 8)  

Sec. 14‐79. ‐ Compacting time required.  

On all ways where permanent pavement has been built, a period of two (2) months must elapse after 
a trench has been backfilled before the permanent surface is replaced, and during this period, a 
temporary surface of premixed bituminous material must be applied. On all other streets the trench must 
be patched with premixed bituminous material as soon as the backfilling has been completed.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 9)  

Sec. 14‐80. ‐ Violation and penalty.  

A person or organization which violates this article shall be punished for each offense by a fine of not 
more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), plus the cost of any applicable fees and charges for the work 
done which remains unpaid. No further permits shall be issued to, and no further excavation work which 
requires a permit shall be done by any person which violates this article until any amounts due have been 
paid. If a private party fails to complete within a reasonable time any work for which an excavation permit 
is required, the town may complete the work and charge the owner of the property for the cost of doing 
so.  

(Ord. of 8-5-85, § 10)  

Secs. 14-81—14-95. - Reserved.Entrances to Public Right-of-Ways 

A. Purpose.  This section provides for the review of any entrance onto a public way for compliance 
with sound construction and design practices, to ensure that traffic safety, drainage and public 
improvements are not adversely affected.  A permit is not required for paving, culvert replacements, 
sealing or repairs to any existing access. 

B. Permit Required.   

1. No driveway, entrance or approach or other improvement within the limits of the right-of-
way for any public road may be constructed, altered or relocated except in accordance with an 
Entrance Permit issued by the Town upon application. 
2. No entrance, approach or other improvement constructed on the right-of-way shall be 
relocated or its dimensions altered without a permit from the Town. 
3. The application fee for each permit is fifty dollars ($50.00) for a driveway serving a single 
family dwelling.  For entrances serving other uses the permit fee is seventy-five dollars ($75.00).  
For lots with multiple entrances, a separate permit is required for each entrance. 
4. The entrance permit shall be valid for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of 
original issue. 
5. The owner served by the entrance is responsible for future maintenance of the entrance 
within the limits of the right-of-way and shall maintain the entrance in accordance with the 
approved permit.  
6. Applicant. The applicant for a permit shall be the owner of the property or authorized 
representative being served. Any driveway or approach constructed by the owner shall be for the 
bona fide purpose of securing access to the owner's property and not for the purpose of parking 
or servicing vehicles on the right-of-way 
7. The applicant shall hold harmless the Town and its duly authorized agents and 
employees against any action for personal injury or property damage sustained by reason of the 
exercise of an entrance permit. 

  



 

 

    Page 4 

C.  Design Criteria.  

1. Entrances should be designed and constructed to provide safe access to the public way. 
Applicants are encouraged to comply with the "Access Management Rules for Driveways and 
Entrances" as developed by the Maine Department of Transportation, latest edition. 

2. Sight Distance Criteria: 

a.  All entrances shall be so located such that vehicles approaching or using the 
entrance will be able to obtain adequate sight distance in both directions along the public 
way or to maneuver safely and without interference with traffic. 

b. Measurements to determine sight distance shall be made in the proposed 
entrance at a point ten (10') feet from the edge of pavement with the height of eye three 
and one half (3.5') feet above the pavement. The sight distance shall be computed from 
this point measuring along the roadway to a point where an approaching height of object 
four and one quarter (4.25') feet is first seen. 

c. Driveway placement shall be such that an existing vehicle has an unobstructed 
sight distance according to the following schedule: 

Highway Speed 
(MPH) 

Minimum Sight  
Distance (in feet) 

25 200 
30 250 
35 305 
40 360 
45 425 
50 495 
55 570 

3. Geometry: 

a. The entrance shall be designed such that the grade within the right-of-way does 
not exceed 10%. 

b. For uncurbed public ways the entrance shall in general slope away from the road 
surface at a rate of not less than one quarter inch (1/4") per foot, nor more than one inch 
per foot (1"/12”) for a distance of not less than the prevailing width of the existing 
shoulder, but in no case less than four (4) feet from the edge of pavement. 

c. The entrance should intersect the traveled way at a horizontal angle of ninety 
(90) degrees but in no case shall the horizontal angle be less than seventy-five (75) 
degrees. 

d. No part of the entrance shall extend beyond the property lot frontage for the lot 
being served. 

e. The entrance shall not be located close to an intersection and should be back at 
least fifty (50) feet. 

5. Drainage: 

a. Existing roadside drainage in gutter or ditch lines shall not be altered or impeded 
by the applicant. The applicant must provide at his/her expense suitable and approved 
drainage structures at all entrances. 

b. Surface drainage shall be provided so that all surface water on the areas 
adjacent to the road shall be carried away from the roadway. 



 

 

    Page 5 

c. Where a drainage culvert is required to maintain roadside drainage the Town 
must approve the pipe diameter/length and type pipe material prior to installation. In any 
case, the pipe size shall be at least twelve (12) inches in diameter. 

6. Construction: 

a. The owner is responsible for all construction and restoration of disturbed areas 
for the entrance within the limits of the right-of-way. 

b. The entire portion of any entrance within the limits of the right-of-way shall be 
constructed with a minimum fifteen inch (15”) well-graded gravel base course (Maine 
Department of Transportation Type C). 

c. If the entrance grade within the right-of-way exceeds five percent (5%) slope then 
the entrance shall have a paved surface within the limits of the right-of-way. 

7. Curb and Sidewalk: 

a. When sidewalk or curb exists at the proposed entrance the applicant shall 
remove and replace such materials at the applicant's expense. Any granite curb to be 
removed by the applicant will remain the property of the Town. 

b. Where curb exists, curb tip-downs shall be provided at each side of a new 
entrance. 

c. Where sidewalk is removed to accommodate a new entrance a new walk surface 
of equal type construction is to be provided. The sidewalk area at all entrances is to meet 
accessibility requirements and conform to the American with Disabilities Act guidelines. In 
general sidewalks shall meet the following: 

1.) The maximum sidewalk longitudinal transition slope is not to exceed one 
(1) vertical to twelve (12) horizontal. 

2.) The maximum sidewalk cross-slope is not to exceed two percent (2%). 

3.) No abrupt changes in grade are permitted and the maximum curb reveal 
crossing a walkway is one-half inch (1/2) or less. 

Secs. 14-82 Obstruction Permit 

A. Permit Required 

No person shall obstruct any street or sidewalk by erecting any staging for building, or place or 
deposit any construction equipment or building materials thereon, or otherwise occupy, obstruct 
or encumber the public way for the purpose of facilitating construction or maintenance activities, 
without first obtaining an “Obstruction Permit” from the public works director or designee for that 
purpose.  A permit is not required for normal commercial delivery vehicles providing inventory and 
goods sold or consumed at the site or for special event activities as approved by the Town.  A 
permit is not required for any public utility vehicle performing emergency or normal service 
operations. 

B. Application Required 

Applications for permits should be submitted in complete form at least 5 business days before the 
desired obstruction date. 

C. Restriction or Revocation of Permit 

The town reserves the right to reject any obstruction permit or restrict the duration and timing of 
any obstruction permits where it deems necessary or appropriate to protect public health and 
safety.  The town may revoke a permit when it deems appropriate due to any site issues that may 
develop that adversely impact or create a hardship to the public. 

D. Fee Schedule: The base application fee is ten dollars ($10.00) plus the following as applicable 



 

 

    Page 6 

1. Occupying any parking stalls located within a time restricted area is fifteen dollars ($15.00) 
per day per stall. 

2. Occupying any area where un-restricted parking is permitted is ten dollars ($10.00) per day. 

3. Occupying a travel lane is fifteen dollars ($15.00) per day. 

4. Occupying part of a sidewalk where sufficient sidewalk area remains to accommodate 
pedestrians (48 inches) or a temporary sidewalk area is provided to safely re-route 
pedestrians around the obstruction is ten dollars ($10.00) per day. 

5. Occupying all of a sidewalk requiring pedestrians to detour and use an alternate route: 
twenty-five ($25.00) per day. 

6. Occupying a street requiring the closure of the street to traffic is one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for up to four (4) hours or two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day. 

7. Failure to obtain in advance an Obstruction Permit shall result in the following charges: 
twenty five dollars ($25.00) for the first occurrence and one hundred dollars for the second 
occurrence and two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for the third and each subsequent 
occurrence, 

8. Should the actual duration of the obstruction area increase from what the applicant originally 
indicated and paid then the applicant will promptly pay for such overage upon notification by 
the Town.  The maximum fee for an obstruction will be capped at two hundred dollars 
($200.00) per month for items 1 thru 5 above. 

E. Application.  The applicant shall provide on proscribed forms the following information: 

1. Exact location of work 

2. Proposed limits of obstructed area (submit a site plan to scale if deemed necessary by public 
works director). 

3. Duration of closure 

4. Anticipated working hours 

5. Responsible names with contact information for emergency site representatives, if needed, 
during non-work hours 

6. Provisions for maintaining traffic flow 
In most cases, the applicant will be required to submit a maintenance and protection of traffic 
plan (MPT). The MPT should address advance warning signs, barricades around work area, 
and proposed detours. Plans should consider pedestrian needs in addition to vehicular traffic.  

7. Proof of liability insurance  

a) Commercial general liability insurance, including contractual liability insurance with a limit 
of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and a least $2,000,000 general annual aggregate 
limit; and  

b) Automobile liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000 for each occurrence 

F. Obstruction Permit Criteria 

1. All work is to be carried out during normal weekday only construction hours.  No work is to 
start before 7:00 a.m. and all work is to end by 7:00 p.m. unless otherwise approved in 
advance.   

2. The applicant shall insure that the location of the obstruction is maintained in a neat and 
orderly fashion. 

3. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to secure the perimeter of the obstructed area as 
may be necessary for pedestrian and vehicular safety. Applicant shall be responsible for 
installing and maintaining signage, jersey barriers, fencing, barricades and the like as 



 

 

    Page 7 



Brunswick Public Works Dept 
9 Industry Rd 
BRUNSWICK  ME   04011 
207.725.6654 
FAX 725.6655 
 

Memorandum 
 

 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager   
 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Town Engineer/Dir. PWD  
 

 DATE: 10 April, 2015 
 

 SUBJECT: Possible Permit Fee Changes 
 

 
As requested, we have reviewed our permit fees for various permits we oversee and 
offer the below recommendations to update our fee schedules.  For reference 
purposes the following is a quick summary of the permits we have processed in the 
last six years for each type.  
 

Calendar 
Year 

Street Opening 
Permits 

Processed 

Entrance 
Permits 

Processed 
2009 149 15 
2010 168 24 
2011 167 13 
2012 153 13 
2013 199 19 
2014 215 25 

Average 175 18 

 
1. Entrance Permit.  We currently do not have an application fee for an 

Entrance Permit (an entrance permit covers a new, relocated or widened 
driveway opening to a public street).   

a. The Town of Topsham charges $10/permit, City of Bath charges 
$50/permit and Town of Freeport charges $150/permit. 

b. For the Town of Brunswick I would recommend the following rate 
structure: 

i. Residential driveway permit: $50.00 
ii. Commercial driveway permit: $75.00 

c. We will also need to develop and enact an ordinance that specifically 
spells out the entrance permit process and requirements as part of 
establishing a permit fee structure 

2. Street Opening Permit.  We currently charge $8.00 for each street opening 
permit application.   

a. The Town of Topsham charges $20/application, City of Bath charges 
$50/application ($500 for winter time application) and the Town of 
Freeport charges $150/application and limits excavation permits only 
to licensed contractors.  The contractor is required to apply and pay an 
annual fee of $180 to be licensed.  Freeport also charges 

Brunswick Public Works Dept 



  April 10, 2015 

  Page 2 

$900/application to open a street in the winter months (November 15 
thru March 31). 

b. There are also fees assessed by most communities if they are to do 
the restoration work and are usually either not assessed or refunded if 
the contractor satisfactorily does the work.  We do have a fee structure 
in place for this option but for my tenure, we have never assessed the 
restoration fee as we always opt for the opening to be fully restored by 
the applicant to our specifications. 

c. One perplexing issue is when utilities, particularly Maine Natural Gas 
extend their main line facilities down the entire length of the street.  
Right now we only charge them $8 for that work.  I have yet to find how 
other communities do this much differently but would like to research 
that issue further. 

d. For the Town of Brunswick I would recommend the following rate 
structure: 

i. Street Opening Permit Application Fee: $100.00 
ii. Wintertime Street Opening Permit Fee: $500.00 
iii. Inspection Services per utility connection 

or single opening: $50.00 
iv. Inspection Services for utility line  

replacements or extensions: $50.00 (min.) 
  + $1.00/l.f. 

e. Currently we have no requirement for a permit to connect to the public 
storm drain and I would recommend we establish such a permit fee.  
We can certainly research what other communities may charge but I 
would recommend a charge of $50.00 for a single connection to the 
town storm drain lines and this could be incorporated into the Street 
Opening Permit rules. 

3. Street Occupancy Permits.  I would recommend we consider implementing 
a new permit process to cover occupancy of the street for the purposes of 
blocking parking spaces, sidewalks or travel lanes to allow work to take place 
that is not part of an excavation permit.  This permit would relate to such 
activities as when a contractor wants to park equipment in a parking space or 
store materials there, block a sidewalk to erect staging for related 
improvements on the abutting property, etc.  We would need to develop an 
ordinance covering these type activities and setting forth a fee structure.  I 
have attached the ordinance section from the City of Portland and they 
presently charge $15/parking space/pay day for such activities.   

  

The above has been prepared for discussion purposes as you requested and we can 
proceed with actual ordinance amendment language on any or all of the above as 
you determine to be appropriate.  Let me know how you want us to proceed. 
 
 
 
C:\Users\jfoster\Dropbox\PDF\Documents\PermitFeesRecommendations.doc 



Street Opening Permit Fees 
Local Communities 

1 
July 21, 2014 

 

 

Bath 

1. $25.00    Permit Fee 

2. $500.00   Winter Excavation (non‐emergency) 

3. $250.00   Excavating without Permit 

4. 150%    Town’s  cost of correction (No action by permittee) 

Topsham 

1. $20.00    Permit Fee 

2. $250.00   Excavating without Permit 

3. 150%    Town’s  cost of correction (No action by permittee) 

To promote the use of tunneling, jacking, and boring technologies, permanent restoration and 

moratorium/remaining life fees will not be assessed to any excavation area achieved by these 

technologies, which does not result in pavement damage. 

Freeport 

1. $180.00  License Fee (Yearly) 

2. $150.00  Application Fee 

3. Surety bond equal to estimated cost 

4. $900.00  Winter Opening Permit 

5. Final area to be measured by the Town and billed, 10% retained.

 



Street Opening Permit Fees 
Local Communities 

2 
July 21, 2014 

 

 

Gorham 

1. $100.00    License Fee 

2. $25.00      Application Fee 

3. $50.00      Application Fee (Major Excavation) 

4. SqYd estimate    Temporary restoration (4” of Cold or Hot mix) 

5. SqYd measured   Final restoration by Town 

6. 105% or $20,000  Performance Bond 

 

Augusta 

1. $18.00 sqyd    Paved areas, concrete and brick surfaces 

2. $6.00 sqyd    Non‐paved areas, including gravel and grass 

3. $2.00 lnft    Pipe≥ 6” installed by drilling 

4. $1.00 Inft    Pipe≤ 6” installed by drilling 

 

Lewiston 

1. $526.00    Permit (good for 1 calendar year) 

2. $53.00      Permit (single occurrence) 

3. See Appendix 1 

 

Auburn 

1. See Appendix 2 



 
 

 
ITEM 54 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memo	Solid	Waste	Ordinance	Amends	042915.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 April	29,	2015	
	
RE:	 Municipal	Code	‐	Solid	Waste		
	 Proposed	Amendment	
	
	
	
	
Solid	waste	disposal	fees	at	the	Graham	Road	Landfill	are	governed	by	ordinance	and	can	be	found	
in	the	Municipal	Code,	section	13.72.		A	proposed	amendment	is	attached.		The	amendment	would	
allow	the	Town	to	contractually	reduce	the	solid	waste	fees	as	part	of	a	contract	the	Town	executes	
to	provide	residential	curbside	rubbish	collection	funded	through	the	Town’s	annual	budget.		The	
purpose	of	the	amendment	is	to	allow	a	discounted	disposal	fee	in	return	for	a	reduction	in	the	
contract	charge	for	curbside	residential	rubbish	collection.			
	
The	Town	currently	contracts	with	Pine	Tree	Waste	for	the	curbside	collection	of	residential	
rubbish.		The	contract	expires	on	June	30,	2015	and	we	have	been	negotiating	an	extension.		One	of	
the	ways	to	offset	an	anticipated	increase	in	the	cost	of	collection	is	to	allow	Pine	Tree	Waste	to	
deliver	non‐residential	waste	to	the	Graham	Road	Landfill	at	a	reduced	tipping	fee.		Given	the	
uncertainties	with	the	landfill,	we	believe	it	makes	sense	to	allow	for	the	opportunity	to	accept	
additional	waste	at	a	lower	tipping	fee	while	we	continue	to	discuss	the	options	surrounding	the	
continued	operation	of	the	landfill.	
	
We	recommend	the	Council	set	a	public	hearing	on	the	amendment.			



 

 

    Page 1 

Sec. 13‐72. ‐ Graham Road Landfill.  

The Graham Road Landfill is a Maine Department of Environmental Protection approved Secure 
Landfill located on Graham Road in Brunswick. Maine.  

(a) Acceptable materials at the Graham Road Landfill.  

(1) The following waste classifications are acceptable for disposal at the Graham Road 
Landfill:  

Brown goods;  

Commercial waste;  

Construction and demolition material;  

Household furniture;  

Household refuse;  

Municipal waste;  

Scrap metal;  

Tires;  

White goods;  

Waste wood;  

Trees and brush; Masonry.  

(b) Graham Road Landfill disposal fees. All users of the Graham Road Landfill are subject to the 
following fee schedule with the exceptions noted for those holding valid residential permits and 
vehicles operated by the town.  

(1) Acceptable waste (with the exception of individual items noted below on this schedule of 
fees):  

a. Residential waste delivered to the landfill by a resident who possesses a valid 
residential disposal permit shall be subject to the following fees and conditions:  

Household refuse (per ton) .....$80.00  

Minimum charge shall be five dollars ($5.00)  

White goods and scrap metal (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge shall be three dollars ($3.00)  

Construction & demolition debris, brown goods, & household furniture (per ton) 
.....$80.00  

Minimum charge shall be five dollars ($5.00)  

Asphalt shingles (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Masonry (per ton) .....$60.00  



 

 

    Page 2 

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Waste wood and wood items (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Tree and brush waste (for resident) .....No Charge  

b. Commercial waste fees: 

Disposal fee (per ton) .....$80.00  

The minimum charge per load shall be five dollars ($5.00)  

Asphalt shingles (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Masonry (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Waste wood and wood items (per ton) .....$60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

Tree and brush waste (per ton) .....$30.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

(2) Tires. All tires disposed of at the landfill are subject to the following fees. No tires will be 
accepted unless they are separated from their rims.  

Up to but not including eighteen (18) inch rim size (each) .....$2.00  

Truck tire, eighteen (18) inch rim diameter or greater (each) .....$10.00  

Heavy equipment tire (Twenty-five dollar ($25.00) minimum charge—Per pound) .....$0.15  

(3) White goods and scrap metal (per ton) .....60.00  

Minimum charge of three dollars ($3.00)  

(4) Inseparable wood waste or masonry debris (per ton) .....$160.00  

(5) Refuse which contains wood waste or masonry material deemed by the public works 
director as inseparable will be accepted at the Graham Road Landfill provided the person 
depositing such material has first obtained a permit from the department of public works.  

(6) The town council may contractually reduce the fees in this section as part of a contract the 
town executes to provide curbside residential rubbish collection funded through the town’s 
annual budget. 

(Ord. of 3-1-93; Ord. of 5-3-04; Ord. of 10-18-06)  

Sec. 13‐73. ‐ Reserved.  



 
 

 
ITEM 55 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



                          Nathaniel Davis Committee Meeting Minutes 
                                        Wednesday, May 6, 2015 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 P.M. at Brunswick Town Hall, 85 Union Street, Room 
117, by Sande Updegraph, Chair.  Also present at the meeting were David Knight, John 
Donovan, Don Kniseley, Dan Doiron, and Marilyn Dwyer. Alison Harris was unable to attend.     
 
The Minutes of May 7, 2014 meeting were unanimously approved. 
 
David Knight told the Committee of a phone call he received from a citizen asking about the 
“Cabin Fever” concert that was previously coordinated by this Committee at Crooker Theater.  
David’s recollection is that the concert occurred in February and was last held approximately 10 
years ago.  This individual asked if such an event might be revived by the Committee.  The 
Committee discussed and concluded the currently serving Committee members would not 
organize such an event.  The primary reason the Committee decided not to revive Cabin Fever 
was that the total funds currently available for distribution are about 50% less than during the 
years that the Cabin Fever event was staged (approximately 10 to 15 years ago).  Annual costs 
for the concert (at that time) had been approximately $1,200.00, a figure that would certainly be 
higher today.  Furthermore, no one on the Committee felt they were in a position to undertake 
organizing this concert.  If a group seeking funding for such an event were to submit a Grant 
Application in the future, the Committee would certainly give such an application its due 
consideration. 
 
David also told the Committee about a concern expressed from an individual regarding public 
access to the record of our deliberations.  The Committee will encourage the Town Council to 
make these minutes available to all interested parties. The Committee discussed several ideas 
such as a press release from the Town Council and other forms of communication in addition to 
the Town Council Minutes.  The Committee hopes all resulting ideas and options will be 
explored. 
 
The Committee reviewed member appointments and end-of-term dates.  The terms of Alison 
Harris, Dan Doiron and Sande Updegraph expire in 2015.  All of these Committee members 
expressed their intentions to renew their terms (Alison via e-mail) and will take the necessary 
steps with the Town Clerk’s office to do so.  
 
The Committee has two elected Officers: Chair (currently Sande Updegraph) and Secretary 
(currently Dan Doiron).  Both Sande and Dan indicated their willingness to continue in these 
roles.  After some discussion and consideration by the members of the Committee, Sande 
Updegraph was elected as Chair, and Dan Doiron was elected as Secretary. 
 
The Committee next considered the evening’s process of applicant interviews and deliberations. 
Alison Harris could not attend this evening’s meeting, but did review the applications and 
provided her input to the Committee via email in advance of our meeting.  Alison is involved 
with the Brunswick Public Art group and, accordingly, recused herself from involvement with 
that application.  David Knight is involved with the Brunswick Downtown Association and also 
recused himself from involvement with those applications. 
 
It was brought to the Committee’s attention that the Brunswick-Topsham Memorial Day 
Committee did not sign its 2015 Grant Application, which was timely received in the Office of 



the Town Manager on April 24, 2015, at 1:15 p.m.  After consideration of the importance of the 
Memorial Day remembrance to the Country, the contribution of the parade to the Town’s 
community activities and the Committee’s desire to continue supporting this tradition, on motion 
made and seconded, it was unanimously voted to accept the application as made.  The 
application was signed by the Applicant’s Representative during their appearance before the 
Committee this evening.  
 
Chair Updegraph informed the Committee the Davis Fund governing instrument provides 
“income” is to be distributed and that figure for purposes of this Committee’s duties tonight is 
$6,500, based on Mr. John Eldridge’s (Town Manager) interpretation of the governing 
instrument, the fund’s investment results and the fund balance. 
 
With these important business meeting issues put before the Committee, and being unanimously 
resolved, the applicant presentation portion of the meeting commenced at 6:35 PM.  Following 
the applicant presentations, the Committee deliberated as to which applicants would be 
recommended to the Town Council, and determined the associated recommended grant amounts 
to be disbursed. 
 
Chair Updegraph will deliver the Committee’s recommendations to the Town Council at an 
upcoming meeting for the Town Council’s deliberation and approval.  All members of the 
Committee are welcome to attend that meeting, the exact date of which will be communicated to 
the Committee when scheduled.  There were ten applicants seeking $12,110 for the $6,500 
available. 
 
As a result of its thoughtful deliberations, the Nathaniel Davis Committee makes the following 
grant recommendations for approval of the Town Council:   
 
Brunswick Public Art – To support the organization’s mission to inspire and promote high-
quality public art throughout Brunswick, by assisting with website maintenance and printed 
promotional material costs - $300. 
 
MidCoast Symphony Orchestra – To support the Side-by-Side project whereby the Orchestra 
invites a select group of Brunswick students to play with the Orchestra during one of their 
concerts, to include support for the purchase and renting of associated musical selections - $500. 
 
Tree Lighting (Brunswick Downtown Association) – To support the 2015 event on the 
Brunswick Mall to be held on the Saturday after Thanksgiving - $500. 
 
Music on the Mall (Brunswick Downtown Association) – To support a series of ten free music 
concerts on the Brunswick Mall scheduled for Wednesday evenings at 6 pm beginning on June 
24, 2015 through August 26, 2015 - $1,200. 
 
Northwest Brunswick Neighborhood Association – To support a series of three free, family film 
screenings in Nathaniel Davis Park planned for the summer of 2015 - $1,000. 
 
Longfellow Days (Brunswick Downtown Association) – To support various Longfellow Days 
events throughout the month of February 2016 - $750 
 
Memorial Day Parade – To support the annual Memorial Parade, culminating with events on the 
Brunswick Mall - $1,250.     
 



Arts Are Elementary – To support two artist-in-residency programs for a singer / songwriter 
program for grade 3 Brunswick students and mural program for grade 5 Brunswick students - 
$1,000. 
 
Although the members of the Committee unanimously felt all applicants were very worthy 
organizations, the following applicants were not recommended to receive a grant.  In reaching 
these decisions, the Committee considered the mission of the Davis Fund (to provide pleasure to 
the inhabitants of Brunswick), the number of inhabitants impacted by the event or project, the 
allocation of some grant funds to all four seasons of the year (to the extent possible), the total 
amount of funds available for disbursement ($6,500) relative to the total amount requested by the 
applicants ($12,110), information obtained from the application and information obtained during 
the applicant’s meeting with the Committee. 
 

 Save Our Swinging Bridge 
 Tri-County Literacy 

 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 9:10 PM.   
 
Respectfully submitted - Daniel P. Doiron, Secretary  



 
 

 
ITEM 56 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 


	ca a yes
	ca a May 4, 2015 min
	ca b yes
	ca b quit scan0014
	mr a on line only
	53 yes
	53 street opening full
	54 yes
	54 Memo Solid Waste Ordinance Amends 042915
	55 yes
	55 Davis Committee Meeting Minutes 2015 Updated
	56 no



